to be sold in the United States at less than fair value (LTFV).

Background

The Commission instituted these investigations effective September 28, 2001, following receipt of a petition filed with the Commission and Commerce by National Ford Chemical Co. of Fort Mill, SC. The final phase of the investigations was scheduled by the Commission following notification of preliminary determinations by Commerce that imports of sulfanilic acid from Hungary were being subsidized within the meaning of section 703(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1671b(b)) and that imports of sulfanilic acid from Hungary and Portugal were being sold at LTFV within the meaning of section 733(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. §1673b(b)). Notice of the scheduling of the final phase of the Commission's investigations and of a public hearing to be held in connection therewith was given by posting copies of the notice in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, Washington, DC, and by publishing the notice in the Federal Register of May 21, 2002 (67 FR 35832).² The hearing was held in Washington, DC, on September 24, 2002, and all person who requested the opportunity were permitted to appear in person or by counsel.

The Commission transmitted its determination in these investigations to the Secretary of Commerce on November 1, 2002. The views of the Commission are contained in USITC Publication 3554 (November 2002), entitled Sulfanilic Acid from Hungary and Portugal: Investigations Nos. 701– TA–426 and 731–TA–984–985 (Final).

Issued: November 1, 2002.

By order of the Commission.

Marilyn R. Abbott,

Secretary to the Commission. [FR Doc. 02–28220 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree and Stipulation of Settlement and Order of Dismissal Under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act

Notice is hereby given that on October 15, 2002, two proposed settlement agreements were lodged with the United District Court of Northern District of Indiana in the matter of *United States* v. *American Standard, Inc. et al.*, Civil No. 3:01CV0513RM. One proposed agreement is titled "Consent Decree with Group Defendants and Other Potentially Responsible Persons for Recovery of Past Response Costs" ("Consent Decree") and the other is titled "Stipulation of Settlement and Order of Dismissal Between United States and Exide Corporation" ("Stipulation of Settlement").

In its Complaint, the United States seeks to recover response costs incurred by the United States in connection with the Four County Landfill Site in Fulton County, Indiana (the "Site"). The complaint alleges that the United States undertook response actions as a result of releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances at the Site, and that the defendants named in the complaint were jointly and severally liable for the costs of such response actions.

Under the proposed Consent Decree, a group of ten defendants (along with 28 additional parties who allegedly contributed hazardous wastes to the Site) will pay \$213,915 to the Hazardous Substances Superfund as partial reimbursement of response costs that the United States paid in connection with the Site through April 30, 2002. Under the proposed Stipulation of Settlement, Exide has agreed to the entry of judgment against it for \$35,405 in settlement of the United States' claims for recovery of response cost that the United States paid in connection with the Site through May 2, 2002. Exide filed a voluntary petition for bankruptcy in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware on April 15, 2000, which was docketed as In Re Exide Technologies, et al., Bankruptcy No 02–11125. Under the terms of the Stipulation of Settlement, the United States shall be allowed a general unsecured claim in the bankruptcy proceeding for the agreed judgment amount of \$35,405. Only the amount of cash received by Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") on its general unsecured claim shall be credited by EPA to the Hazardous Substance Superfund.

The Department of Justice will receive, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication, comments relating to the proposed Consent Decree and the proposed Stipulation of Settlement. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General, Environmental and Natural Resources Division, PO Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044–7611, and should refer to United States v. *American Standard, Inc., et al.*, D.J. Ref. 90–11–3–07510.

The proposed Consent Decree and the proposed Stipulation of Settlement may be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney, 204 S. Main Street, South Bend, Indiana, 46601, and at U.S. EPA Region 5, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois, 60604. A copy of the proposed Consent Decree, the proposed Stipulation of Settlement, or both, may also be obtained by mail from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044–7611 or by faxing a request to Tonia Fleetwood, fax no. (202) 514–0097, phone confirmation number (202) 514-1547. In requesting a copy of the Consent Decree, please enclose a check in the amount of \$7.25 (25 cents per page reproduction cost) payable to the U.S. Treasury. In requesting a copy of the Stipulation of Settlement, please enclose a check of \$5.75 (25 cents per page) payable to the U.S. Treasury.

William D. Brighton,

Assistant Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. 02–28239 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–15–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Under the Clean Air Act and the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act

Under 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby given that on October 21, 2002, a proposed Consent Decree ("Consent Decree") in *United States v. Color Communications, Inc.,* Civil Action No. 99 C 4489, was lodged with the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois.

The United States' complaint in this action asserts claims against Color Communications, Inc. ("CCI") for injunctive relief and civil penalties for violations of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq. ("CAA"), and applicable provisions of a Federal Implementation Plan and a State Implementation Plan governing sources that emit volatile organic materials to the ambient air within the Chicago Metropolitan Area Ozone Non Attainment Area. The complaint also alleges that CCI failed to comply with the reporting requirements of the **Emergency Planning and Community** Right-to-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq. ("EPCRA") The State of Illinois intervened as a plaintiff in this action and asserted additional claims against

 $^{^2\,\}mathrm{A}$ revised final phase schedule was published in the Federal Register of June 6, 2002 (67 FR 39041).

CCI. Since the action was filed, CCI implemented measures that brought its facility into compliance with requirements that were the subject of this action. As a result, the relief provided under the proposed Decree addresses the alleged liability of CCI for civil penalties for past violations of applicable requirements under the CAA and EPCRA. The Consent Decree requires CCI to pay civil penalties totalling \$435,000, plus interest, to the United States and the Plaintiff-Intervenor State of Illinois, in three separate installments, the last of which will be due two years after entry of the Consent Decree. Of this amount, CCI will pay \$243,931, plus interest, to the United States, and \$191,069, plus interest, to the State of Illinois. In addition, the proposed Consent Decree provides for CCI to implement Supplemental Environmental Projects, including the surrender of certain Illinois emission trading credits that CCI received by reducing facility emissions below levels otherwise allowed by law.

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the Consent Decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General, Environment and Natural Resources Division, PO Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20444–7611, and should refer to *United States* v. *Color Communications, Inc.*, D.J. Ref. 90–5–2–1–2105.

The Consent Decree may be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney, 219 South Dearborn Street, Chicago, IL 60604, and at U.S. EPA Region 5, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, IL 60604. A copy of the Consent Decree may also be obtained by mail from the Consent Decree Library, PO Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044-7611 or by faxing a request to Tonia Fleetwood, fax no. (202) 514-0097, phone confirmation number (202) 514-1547. In requesting a copy, please enclose a check in the amount of \$5.50 (25 cents per page reproduction cost) payable to the U.S. Treasury.

William D. Brighton,

Assistant Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. 02–28238 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–15–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—AAF Association, Inc.

Notice is hereby given that, on September 17, 2002, pursuant to section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 et seq. ("the Act"), AAF Association, Inc. has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership status. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, Adobe Systems, Inc., San Jose, CA; Cakewalk, Boston, MA; da vinci Systems, Inc., Coral Springs, FL; Nucoda, London, England, United Kingdom; and the Post Group, Hollywood. CA have been added as parties to this venture. The following member has changed its name: techmath AG to blue order, Inc., Kaiserlautern, Germany. Grass Valley Group, Beaverton, OR was acquired by Thomson multimedia, Inc., Boulogne, cedex, France and will continue under the name of Thomson Valley Group. Also, Ascential Software, Oakland, CA; eMotion, Inc., Los Angeles, CA; and Omneon Video Networks, Sunnyvale, CA have been dropped as parties to this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open, and AAF Association, Inc. intends to file additional written notification disclosing all changes in membership.

On March 28, 2000, AAF Association, Inc. filed its original notification pursuant to section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to section 6(b) of the Act on June 29, 2000 (65 FR 40127).

The last notification was filed with the Department on June 13, 2002. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to section 6(b) of the Act on July 25, 2002 (67 FR 48670).

Constance K. Robinson,

Director of Operations, Antitrust Division. [FR Doc. 02–28142 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–11–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—IMS Global Learning Consortium, Inc.

Notice is hereby given that, on September 16, 2002, pursuant to section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 et seq. ("the Act"), IMS Global Learning Consortium, Inc. has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership status. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, Fretwell Downing Informatics, Sheffield, England, United Kingdom; Texas Instruments, Inc., Dallas, TX; and The Open University, Milton Keyes, England, United Kingdom have been added as parties to this venture. Also NYUOnline, Inc., New York, NY has been dropped as a party to this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open, and IMS Global Learning Consortium, Inc. intends to file additional written notification disclosing all changes in membership.

On April 7, 2000, IMS Global Learning Consortium, Inc. filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to section 6(b) of the Act on September 13, 2000 (65 FR 55283).

The last notification was filed with the Department on June 26, 2002. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to section 6(b) of the Act on August 13, 2002 (67 FR 52744).

Constance K. Robinson,

Director of Operations, Antitrust Division. [FR Doc. 02–28146 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–11–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—J Consortium, Inc.

Notice is hereby given that, on August 28, 2002, pursuant to section 6(a) of the